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( PROCEEDI NGS COMVENCED AT 10: 35 AM

Openi ng Remar ks

THE CHAI R Good norning, and wel cone to
the public hearing with application filed by Haml et of
Chesterfield Inlet via its representative, Governnent

of Nunavut, Community and Governnent Services, to renew
its expired Type "B" water licence to authorize the use
of water and deposit of waste associated with the

Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet's nunicipal undertaking.
My nane is Lootie Toomasie, and | amthe Chair of
Nunavut Water Board and the NWB's Hearing Chair for
this public hearing.

Before we proceed with the hearing, please |et us
begin with a prayer. |1'd like to call Mary Rose to say
a prayer, one of the interpreter.

Openi ng Prayer
THE CHAI R: Quj annam i k for the prayer.

On behal f of the Nunavut Water Board, | wel cone
you to the Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet.

Now t o provi de sone background and set the stage
for the hearing, the Nunavut Water Board, which | shal
refer to as the "Board" or the "NWB", is an institution
of public governnent created under Article 13 of the
Nunavut Agreenent and the Nunavut Surface Ri ghts
Tribunal Act. NWB is responsible for the use,

managenent, and the regul ations of freshwater in
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Nunavut settlenent area.

The purpose of this public hearing is to review an
application of Governnment of Nunavut, Community and
Gover nment Services, on behalf of the Ham et of
Chesterfield Inlet -- | may refer to themas "G\ CGS"
and "Haml et" respectively or the Applicant -- to
repl ace the expired Type "B" water licence with a
Type "A" water |licence for the use of water and deposit
of waste associated wth the nunicipal undertaking at
the Haml et of Chesterfield Inlet.

The Haml et of Chesterfield Inlet obtains its water
fromFirst Lake, Puiqgsuk Lake, |ocated 2.6 kilonetres
sout hwest of the conmmunity. Sewage is trucked to a
sewage treatnent facility approximately 2.2 kil onetres
west of the community. Effluent flows through two
sewage detention cells and into the wetland treatnent
area. The effluent travels through the wetl and
treatnent area towards Finger Bay approximtely
800 nmetres to 1,000 nmetres fromthe di scharge point.

The Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet solid waste
di sposal facilities consist of a fenced di sposal area,
bul k nmetal disposal area, and two drum storage areas.

A deconmmi ssion landfill is present between the fenced
di sposal area and the bul k netal disposal area.
As set out in Section 13.3 .6 of Nunavut Agreenent

and Section 29 of Nunavut Waters and Nunavut Surface
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Ri ghts Tri bunal Act, the Board has delegated its power
to dispose of all matters related to the processing of
the application to replace the Type "B" water |icence
3BM CHE1523, which expired on May 14, 2023, as a

Type "B" water licence -- Type "A" -- sorry -- Type "A"
water |icence 3AM CHE----, including the conduct of
this public hearing, to a panel of the Board, which is
referred to as the "Chesterfield Inlet Panel” or a "P24
Panel ".

| will be chairing this panel, and with nme today,
as nmenbers of the panel, are Board nenbers Sarah Sil ou
on the left side and Eli zabeth Copland on ny ri ght
si de.

Several staff nenbers who have contributed to the
NVWB's adm ni stration and technical review of the
application are present along with |legal counsel to the
NB, and | will introduce the individuals in
attendance: Stephanie Autut, executive director; Karen
Khar at yan, director of technical services; Ben Kogvik,
di rector of Board adm nistration and conmuni cati ons;
Robert Hunter, licencing adm nistrator at the back;
Mohammad Al i Shai kh, technical advisor; and Teresa
Meadows from Meadows Law, |egal counsel to the Board.

In addition, we have two interpreters avail able
for sinmultaneous interpretation, Ben Kogvik, in-house

interpreter to the Board; and Mary Rose Angoshadl uk,
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who is from Chesterfield Inlet; and A oria Thonpson.
OCh, Rankin. Sorry. It doesn't say in ny notes here.
Sorry.

For audi o support, we have Ryan Denpster from Pl DO
Productions. |If you experience any difficulties with
your headset, Ryan is able to provide you assi stance.

To ensure we have an accurate record of the
proceedi ngs, we have with us a court reporter, Andres
Vidal, fromDicta Court Reporting |ncorporated.

Before | nove on to an overview of this
application and what to expect today during the public
hearing, there are sone inportant housekeeping itens
for everyone here.

First, as indicated earlier, there is
i nterpretation avail abl e throughout the hearing in
English and I nuktitut. Earpieces can be obtained from
the table located just by the door as you enter this
room Channel 2 broadcasts English while Channel 3
broadcasts | nuktitut.

Second, the Board appreciates if everyone,

I ncluding the Applicant, intervenors, and nenbers of
the public, sign in on the sheets |located at the table
as you cone in. This is an inportant record of the
heari ng, and we appreciate your help in making sure it
s conplete.

Thirdly, the agendas for the public hearing and
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the community session are avail able at the back.
Pl ease pick one up and follow along with us as we
proceed.

The washroons are |located in the entrance to the
hall and the exits are in the back -- in the front and
the back of the hall and in the entrance to the hall.

There's coffee, tea, and snacks brought in during
breaks throughout the hearing, and you are welcone to
hel p yoursel f throughout the day.

| also would like to rem nd everyone to pl ease
turn off your cell phones or put themon silent before
we begin. Mke sure I'mdoing the right ... Yeah.
It's set to the silent.

| would also like -- finally -- sorry. Finally,
to assist both our court reporter and our interpreters,
pl ease wait to have a m crophone before you speak.
Then state your nane, speak clearly and slowy, and
avoid the use of abbreviation. W appreciate your
assi stance in making sure your comments are recorded
and the Board's record of proceedings is accurate and
conpl ete.

| would like to notify the participants that the
medi a - -

Is there nmedia in place, Teresa?

MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa

Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut WAter Board.
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No, M. Chair. At this point, | have no
i ndi cations that nmedia are present or participating
onl i ne.

THE CHAI R kay. Thank you. Yeah.

In the past, parties in other proceedings have
approached -- 1'll skip that as well. It's talking
about the nedia. There's no nedia in the room

Prior to identifying and introducing all of the
parties in attendance today, | will provide a brief
hi story of the application, which are before the Board.
Ckay. Let nme change ny eyeglasses. D fficult to read
inthe ... OCh, that's better now.

As nmentioned earlier, the application which is
currently before the Board is for a Type "A" water
i cence Nunber 3AM CHE---- requested by the Hanl et of
Chesterfield Inlet via its representative, Governnent
of Nunavut, Community and Governnent Servi ces.

The scope of the proposed anendnents includes the
follow ng: Replacing the Type "B" Water Licence Nunber
3BM CHE1523 expired as of May 14, 2023, with a new
Type "A" water licence for a ten-year termto allow for
the continued use of up to 23,000 cubic netres of water
annual | y and deposit of waste associated with a
muni ci pal undertaki ng; extraction of up to 2,000 cubic
netres per day of freshwater from First Lake for the

annual resupply of the storage reservoir during the
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open wat er season; and no changes to existing
facilities, including the water supply facility and the
solid waste and sewage di sposal facilities.

| will now provide a summary of the main docunents
that G\-CGS provided to the Board in support of the
application to renew and anend the water |icence. The
application includes the foll owi ng docunents: A water
|'icence application docunent, executive summaries in
English and I nuktitut, a cover letter, authorization
letter, NPC conformty determ nations, plan for
conpl i ance.

I n addition, G\ CGS provided updated managenent
plans for the Board and parties to review. G\ CGS al so
filed revised docunents in response to technica
comment subm ssions fromthe intervenors and the Board.
Copies of all of the materials filed by the Applicant
in support of its renewal -anmendnent application as well
as docunents related to the expired licence are
avai l able on the N\B's public registry and the FTP
site.

In addition, our licencing adm nistrator, Robert
Hunter, can nmake avail able for public view ng at the
hearing the electronic copies of the public registry
for this application and the key docunents for the
application received to date. |If you are interested in

reviewi ng any of the docunentation, please ask Robert.
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Now | am going to provide you with a very brief
overvi ew of key steps in the procedural history for
this application that outlines how we got to this
publ i c hearing stage.

The original application for the renewal of the
Type "B" water |licence was received by NVB on
Decenber 20, 2022.

On January 11, 2023, the NWB inforned the
Applicant that because the daily anount of water
extracted from First Lake during the resupply of the
reservoir exceeds the threshold of 300 cubic netres a
day, the undertaking now requires a Type "A" water
| icence to replace the previous Type "B" water |icence.

At that time, the NMB al so revised -- advised --

sorry -- advised the Applicant to contact the Nunavut
wat er pl anni ng conm ssion -- Nunavut Pl anni ng
Commi ssion -- sorry -- Nunavut Pl anni ng Comm ssi on,

NPC, and the Nunavut | npact Review Board, NIRB, to
i nformthem of the change to the type of water |icence
requested, as land use conformty and i npact assessnent
requi rements applicable to a Type "A" water |icence
differ fromthe requirenents applicable to a Type "B"
wat er |icence.

On March 7, 2023, the Nunavut Pl anning
Commission -- | will call them"NPC' for short --

determ ned that the project conforns to the Keewatin

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
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regi onal |and use plan, KRLUP, and the application does
not require NI RB screening, and previous conformty
det er mi nati ons apply.

On March 20, 2023, the Nunavut Water Board
recei ved the application and supporting docunentation
fromG\N-CGS to renew and anend the expired Type "A"
| icence associated with the application of Chesterfield
Inlet's munici pal undertaking.

On March 22, 2023, the NWB acknow edged recei pt of
the application and asked interested persons to review
t he scope and conpl eteness of infornation provided as
well as to identify any deficiencies and infornmation
requests.

By April 12, 2023, the Board received comments on
the conpl eteness of the application fromthe
Crown- I ndi genous Rel ations and Northern Affairs,

Cl RNAC;, Environnment and C i mate Change Canada, ECCC,
and Fi sheries and Oceans, DFO

On May 3, 2023, the Applicant provided responses
to conpl eteness check information requests, |IRs.

On May 23, 2023, the Board issued notice of the
application. The notice invited intervenors and any
Interested parties to commence their technical review
of the application and provide the Board with their
coments and al so proposed to hold a tel econference

technical neeting and pre-hearing conference for the

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
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application during the week of July 2023.

Crown- I ndi genous Rel ations and Northern Affairs
and climte change -- Environnent and C i nmate Change
Canada provi ded technical review coments by June 21,
2023.

G\N-CGS filed a response to the technical coments
of these parties and the NWB on June 29, 2023.

On July 6, 2023, the NWB distributed the draft
agenda for the TM comunity session/ PHC al ong with the
updated outline for the next steps in the process.

On July 14, 2022 -- it's supposed to be 2023 --
NWB provided the final agendas for the TM community
sessi on/ PHC.

On July 19, 2023, the Board conducted its
technical neeting, including a comunity session, and
pre-hearing conference via tel econference and vi deo
conf erence.

On August 25, 2023, the Board rel eased the
pre-hearing conference decision that summarized the
out cone of the technical neeting and pre-hearing
conference held by the Board. At the sane tine, the
Board al so rel eased the notice of this public hearing
and the list of the commtnents to be filled by the
Applicant -- fulfilled by the Applicant. Sorry.

Cct ober 5, 2023, was the date to submt fina

written subm ssions and presentations to the Board.

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
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On Novenber 2, 2023, the NMB circul ated the fina
agenda for the public hearing. As | nentioned earlier,
the final agenda, including translated copies, are
avai l able fromthe table as you enter the hall if you
wi sh to pick one up and foll ow al ong.

Conpl ete details on all procedural steps and al
subm ssions received in relation to the application are
avai l able on the N\\B's FTP site. |If you have questions
or would like to see any materials, please see Robert
at the table as you enter the hall.

| wll now nove on to read a list of the issues
that wll be discussed at this hearing. This |ist was
prepared during the technical hearing and pre-hearing
conference: The scope of the Type "A" water |icence to
repl ace the expired licence, no changes to the scope of
the expired licence; termof licence, ten-year term
request ed; water use, no changes to anount of water
use; wastewater nmanagenent, potential for a new water
treatnment facility in the future, triggers and tim ng
to prepare and submt sludge managenent plan prior to
sl udge di sposal; waste managenent, no plans for new
landfill infrastructure during the requested term
clarification of the use of the landfarmfor disposal
of contam nated soils; closure and reclamation
pl anning, timng for preparation and subm ssion of a

conceptual closure and reclamation plan; nonitoring

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
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program annual report preparation and tim ng of
subm ssion to the NWB, daily water use reporting;
anendnent to the water |icence, renoval of requirenents
that the Applicant has indicated are not practical or
are no | onger applicable, subm ssions of paper
docunents, aligning subm ssion deadlines with the
annual report, daily waste disposal reporting;
corrections/updates to existing managenent and
nmoni tori ng pl ans.

If there are no concerns, | would like to nove
forward to a roll call. | wll begin the roll cal
with the Applicant, Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet and
its representative, Governnent of Nunavut, Comrunity
and Governnent Services. Can you please introduce your
participants. Go ahead.
Rol | Call
MR. | VEY: Hello. [|'mJohn lvey, the

seni or adm nistrator officer for the Hanl et.

MR. SAMMURTCK: My nanme is Simonie Sanmurt ok
(1 NUKTI TUT SPOKEN) .
THE CHAI R: s there GN staff here?
Ter esa
MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair.

It's ny understandi ng that the Governnent of
Nunavut, Conmmunity and Governnent Services, are online

perhaps. Can we please go to the online participants.

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
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Thank you.
M5. CLOUTER Thank you so nuch.
My nane is Kayla Clouter. | ama project nmanager

for the Governnment of Nunavut, Community and Gover nnent
Services, and joining ne from G\N-CGS, | have Megan
Lusty, who is the nmanager of nunicipal works. Thank
you so nuch
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Il wll now go to intervening parties.
Crown- I ndi genous Rel ations and Northern Affairs,
Cl RNAC.
MS. W LSON: H. I'mChristine WIson, and
I'mthe water resource -- water managenent coordi nator,
and | have Andrew Keim the manager of water resources.
THE CHAI R: Envi ronment Canada.
M5. MALLON: Good norning. My nane is
Stephinie Mallon, and |'mthe acting senior
environnment al assessnent officer with Environnent and
C i mate Change Canada. Thank you.
THE CHAl R Thank you.

|s there any intervenors that | have not nentioned
who woul d |i ke to speak? Please identify yourself.

Ckay. | didn't hear any response.

It is our tradition to give respect to our Elders.
Therefore, at any tine during the proceedi ng, an El der

may speak to the application that is before the Board.

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
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Al that we ask is that when the Elders wish to speak,
they may et nme and our staff know, and then we can get
the m crophone to you before you speak so we can ensure
your conments are recorded in the transcript.

| would now |ike to know whet her there are any
representatives from agenci es, associ ations, et cetera,
who have not submitted interventions but would like to
make a presentation or share their views about the
application.

Are there any nenbers of the general public who
would |i ke to nake a fornal request to nake a
presentation or speak to the Board during this public
heari ng?

| also want to nention that the Board will also
gi ve opportunities to any nenbers of the public who may
have questions for GN-CGS or the intervenors throughout
the hearing to ask their questions or nake comments at
the end of the technical presentation of each party
and during the community session that wll be taking
pl ace tonight at 7 PM

Il wll nowturn to the identification of ny
notions or any objections to the anendnent application
that are before the Board.

Teresa, go ahead.

MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa

Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut WAter Board.
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M. Chair, we have received no notification of any
obj ections or notions to this application, and so |

woul d reconmmend that we proceed. Thank you, M. Chair.

THE CHAI R Thank you, Teresa.
W will now proceed with ItemE -- Item8 --
sorry -- Item 8 of the agenda, the presentation by the

Applicant. The Applicant has requested to nake a brief
presentation on the renewal -anmendnent application
bef ore the Board.

Ms. Lusty. Sorry. Go ahead.
MR. | VEY: Good norni ng, everybody.
Basically, the -- the -- the intent is to get a
Type "A" water licence. Qur Type "A" water |icence
exceeded the allowable quantity of water which we
delivered, and we're seeking a new ten-year term under
the "A" water |icence.

And this is a first time for being involved in a

public hearing, so a little bit unsure if -- exactly
what we have to say, but that's -- to keep it |egal and
keep it -- so we weren't able to deliver water to al

the units that we have to. W have to have a Type "A"

licence. | don't know. 1Is there any other specific

i nformati on you need fromus? Go ahead. | see |egal.
THE CHAI R Ter esa

MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa

Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut WAter Board.
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So the question actually to the Hamet is: Wo
will be making the presentation? W have presentation
materi als provided by the Governnent of Nunavut,
Communi ty and Governnent Services, and our question is:
Who will be nmaking that presentation, and then how | ong

do you expect that presentation to go?

MR. | VEY: | suspect it would be Kayl a
Cl outer.

M5. CLOUTER H , John.

MR. | VEY: Per haps Kayl a can speak to

t his.

M5. CLOUTER: Yeah. Absolutely. Thank you

so much, John. Thank you, Teresa.

| wll be presenting on behalf of Governnent of
Nunavut, Comrunity and Governnment Services. | expect
the presentation to take approximately 10 to
15 mnutes, and | will be sharing ny screen to make
that presentation, if that is possible.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Teresa, go ahead.
V5. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa
Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut \Water Board.

So, M. Chair, for public hearings, it is our
practice that before anybody who is providing evidence
directly to the Board with the exception of Elders and

community menbers, that we swear themin or affirmthem
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for the record and so that the people present can
understand that their evidence that they are giving is
evi dence that they believe to be true and have verified
is true.

And when we are dealing with parties that are
renote attendees, our process is a little bit
different. So what | would recommend is that | wll do
the affirmations for the representatives of the Hanl et
who are here present, and then | will turn to doing the
affirmation for the presenters that wll be online for
the Governnent of Nunavut, Community and Gover nnent
Services. So if | can have the presenters who are

present state and spell your nane for the record,

pl ease.
MR. | VEY: My nane is John lvey, spelled
| -V-E-Y.
MR. SAMMURTCXK: My nane is Simonie Samurt ok.

Ilt's SAMMURT-0OK, Sanmurtok.
SIM ONI E SAMMURTOK and JOHN | VEY, Affirned
MS. MEADOWS: Moving on to the presenters
that are online for Community and Governnent Services.
If you can state and spell your nanme for the record,
pl ease.
M5. CLOUTER Thank you so nuch.

My nane is Kayla Clouter. That's K-A-Y-L-A
GL-OCUT-E-R
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MS. LUSTY: H. M nane is Megan Lusty,
ME-GANL-UST-Y.
KAYLA CLOUTER and MEGAN LUSTY, Affirned
M5. MEADOWG: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa
Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut Water Board.
M. Chair, | have copies of -- hard copies of the
Power Poi nt presentation that was filed in four
| anguages with the Board in advance of the public
hearing and that it is ny understanding wll be
presented under this itemof the agenda, and | propose
to mark these four copies as the first exhibits in this
public hearing. And, M. Chair, those are all ny
procedural matters.
EXH BIT 1 - Hard Copy, Power Point
Presentati on, Water Licence Renewal and
Amendnent, Chesterfield Inlet 3AM CHE----
(English/ I nuktitut)
EXH BIT 2 - Hard Copy, Power Poi nt
Presentation, Water Licence Renewal and
Amendnment, Chesterfield Inlet 3AM CHE----
(I'nuktitut)
EXH BIT 3 - Hard Copy, Power Poi nt
Presentation, Water Licence Renewal and
Amendnment, Chesterfield Inlet 3AM CHE----
(Engl i sh)
EXH BIT 4 - Hard Copy, Power Poi nt
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Presentation, Water Licence Renewal and

Amendnent, Chesterfield Inlet 3AM CHE----

(French)

THE CHAI R Thank you.
So pl ease go ahead. Have your presentation,
Ms. Lusty.
Presentation by Applicant, Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet
M5. LUSTY: Thank you, M. Chair.

It is actually Kayla Clouter who is doing the
presentation on behalf of G\-CGS, and she will be
sharing her screen to do so.

M5. CLOUTER: So if everybody could let ne
know when they're able to see ny screen.
MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, Ms. Couter.

| can confirmthat we can see the Power Poi nt
present ati on.

M5. CLOUTER Excellent. Thank you so mnuch.

So this is a presentation by the Governnent of
Nunavut, Community and Governnment Services, for the
Nunavut Water Board public hearing for the water
| icence renewal and anendnent for Chesterfield Inlet of
a Type "A" water |icence.

So to go over the existing licence a little bit,
the date of the existing |icence i ssuance was May 15t h,
2015, and it expired on May 14th of 2023. The scope of

the licence allows for the use of water and deposit of
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waste for a nunicipal undertaking classified per

Schedul e 1 of the regulations at the --

M5. MEADOWS: Excuse ne.

M5. CLOUTER: -- Ham et of Chesterfield

I nlet.

M5. NEADOWS: My apol ogi es --

M5. CLOUTER Sorry. Go ahead.

M5. NMEADOWS: -- Ms. Clouter. W do have

si mul taneous interpretation in --
M5. CLOUTER Ckay.
V5. NMEADOWS: -- Chesterfield, and so you're

going to have to slow down by quite a bit.

M5. CLOUTER Ckay.
V5. NMEADOWS: Thank you.
M5. CLOUTER So this application is for the

renewal of the existing licence and an anendnent to
change to a Type "A" licence to reflect that the annual
resupply of the raw water reservoir is exceedi ng
299 netres cubed per day. This change is to reflect
the higher daily withdrawal s that occur during the
annual resupply. Al water use and waste di sposal
activities will remain the sane as per the existing
expired |icence.

So for sone background i nformation on the water
supply, First Lake is the donestic water supply for the

Muni ci pality of Chesterfield Inlet, an approxinate
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popul ati on of 437 per the 2016 census.

The watershed is frozen for seven to nine nonths
out of the year. Therefore, a raw water reservoir has
to be adequately supplied prior to freeze-up each year,
and there will be no change to the resupply operations
at First Lake with this anmendnent renewal .

Chesterfield Inlet currently uses up to 2,000
nmetres cubed per day for approximately 14 days to
refill the reservoir. The reservoir was built and has
been in use since the 1990s.

This is just an overview of the water supply
I nfrastructure.

So the sewage treatnent facility is | ocated
approximately 2.2 kilonmetres west of the community.
The facility was upgraded in 2010 and is conprised of
two truck discharge areas, two sewage detention cells,
and a wetlands area with a series of four small ponds
and two fl ow diversion bermns.

The wet| ands enconpass an area that is
approximately 10.4 hectares. Effluent flows 800 to
1,000 netres through the wetlands fromthe sewage
detention cells to the marine environnent of Finger Bay
on the Hudson Bay.

This is just an overview of that wastewater
di sposal infrastructure.

Chesterfield Inlet's solid waste di sposal
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facilities consist of a fenced di sposal area for
muni ci pal solid waste, a separate bul k netal disposal
area approximately 200 netres south of the fenced
muni ci pal solid waste area, and two drum storage areas
approxi mately 150 nmetres and 270 netres sout heast of

t hat nunici pal solid waste area.

A decommi ssioned landfill is present between the
fenced nmunicipal solid waste area and the bul k net al
di sposal area at the head of the sewage treatnent
wet | and.

The Haml et collects solid waste from conmunity
bui |l dings five days a week with a garbage truck and
transports the waste to the nunicipal solid waste
di sposal facility located 2.2 kilonetres west of the
comuni ty.

The nunici pal solid waste --

M5. MEADOWE: Excuse ne.

M5. CLOUTER -- disposal facility --

THE CHAI R Can you slow down a bit. The
interpreters have to -- having a hard tine -- in line
wi th you.

M5. CLOUTER: Absol utely. Sorry about that.

"Il start that point over again.
So the Ham et collects its solid waste from
comunity buildings five days a week, and that is

collected with the garbage truck. It transports the
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waste to the municipal solid waste disposal facility,
which is located 2.2 kilonetres west.

The municipal solid waste disposal facility covers
an area of approximately 24,000 netres squared, and it
Is situated adjacent to and north of the sewage
di sposal facility.

This is just an overview of that solid waste
I nfrastructure.

So noving on to the current sanpling program under
the existing expired licence. So CHE -- Station CHE-1
iIs the raw water supply intake at First Lake. CHE-2
covers runoff fromthe solid waste disposal facility.
CHE-3 is effluent from Sewage Hol ding Cell 1. CHE-3a
is effluent from Sewage Holding Cell 2. And CHE-4 is
the final discharge point for the effluent fromthat
wetl and treatnent area prior to Finger Bay.

And that is an overview of all the sanpling points
per the current expired |icence.

So noving on to the regul atory review and conments
from Environnent and C i nate Change Canada and
Crown- I ndi genous Rel ati ons and Northern Affairs Canada.

The first coment from Environnment and Cinmate
Change Canada was regardi ng sl udge managenent, about
the future of sludge nonitoring, whether it is
nmonitored on a regular basis and if there is a decrease

in the treatnment performance. It was recomended that
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sanpling of the sludge at the sewage disposal facility
t ake pl ace.

So G\N-CGS' s response was that the sludge level is
observed through visual inspection, and that is done
during the annual inspection, and it has not been
identified as a conpliance issue in the report.

GNHCGS is currently seeking funding to construct a
new | agoon that will accommobdate the anticipated sl udge
vol unes so disposal will not be necessary.

Renmedi ati on of the existing sludge is a part of
this project, and, if necessary, sanpling can be done
at that tine.

The next comment was in regards to runoff
col l ection and whether runoff is collected fromthe
solid waste facility and tested prior to discharge.

CGS' s response was that runoff fromthe solid
waste facility is not collected. Monitoring Location
CHE-2 nonitors free-flowi ng runoff fromthe solid waste
facility prior to it entering the wetland treatnent
area. There has been no indication that |eachate has
caused a negative inpact on the wetland historically,
and this is based on sanpling results. But nonitoring
stations wll continue to be nonitored in the future.

Moving on to the comments from CIRNAC. The first
coment of note there was regardi ng abandonnent and

restoration plans. So it was recomended that a
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conceptual abandonnent and restoration plan would be
provi ded.

CGS's response to that was that abandonnent and
restoration plans are devel oped by third parties hired
by GN-CGS at the tinme that that plan is required as A&R
plans are site and asset specific.

The next comment was regardi ng i nspection reports.
Cl RNAC was unable to |ocate a report by a geotechnica
or muni ci pal engineer within the last five years. So
no report like that currently exists. GNCGCS is
currently undertaking a project to identify the type of
I nspection, the frequency of inspection, and the
appropriate professional with specific training to
undertake the inspections for the assets under --
aut hori zed under the nunicipal water licence. This
report is expected to be conplete in 2023/2024, and it
will be provided to the Nunavut Water Board for
di stribution.

The next conment was regardi ng Monitoring
Location CHE-1 and the daily volunes w thdrawn during
resupply. So GN-CGS will report the daily vol unes
punped from First Lake during the annual resupply in
the annual report as Mnitoring Location CHE-1.

The next comment was regardi ng a new nonitoring
| ocati on, CHE-1a, and the reconmrendation was for this

new nonitoring | ocation to be at the water supply
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facility to nonitor the daily volune of water used.

So CGS' s response was that nonthly vol unes are
currently reported in the annual report based on
billing records supplied by the community. G ven that
this punp house draws water for consunption from an
engi neered reservoir and not fromthe natural water
source, GNCGS will report based on the resupply
vol umes going forward rather than w thdrawal at the
punp house, and this would be the daily vol unes
reported at Monitoring Location CHE- 1.

Sewage di sposal reported in the annual report wll

continue to correlate wwth the nonthly water usage, and

this will be based on billing records, and the nonthly
wat er usage will be -- wll continue to be reported as
I'S.

The fifth comment was in regards to | andfarm use
and whether that landfarmis in use by the community
for contam nated soils or not. So G\-CGS confirned
that the landfarmis not currently used by the
muni ci pality for the renmedi ati on of contam nated soils.
However, if it is needed to use the landfarmfor the
remedi ati on of contam nated soils, a letter of
aut horization will be requested fromthe owner.

So noving on to the renewal s and anendnents t hat
we are asking for in this water |licence. W are asking

for alicence termof ten years, and this is based on
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the fact that there is no change in nunici pal
operations, and the water use is not expected to

I ncrease beyond the current annual limt within the
next ten years, and this is based on popul ation
proj ecti ons.

So we are requesting that the nmaxi numdaily water
wi t hdrawal s be increased to 2,000 netres cubed.
Justification for this request is that the watershed is
frozen for seven to nine nonths a year. Therefore, a
raw water reservoir needs to be adequately supplied
prior to freeze-up each year. There is no change to
resupply operations at First Lake for the required
annual vol une of water.

And our next request is the renoval of several
requi rements fromthe licence. This includes a
subm ssi on of paper docunments as everything is
currently submtted el ectronically, aligning subm ssion
deadlines with the annual reports, and the requirenent
of daily waste disposal for reporting.

So we're requesting annual solid waste reporting
and nonthly and annual sewage reporting, and currently
there is no solid waste attendant position within the
comuni ty.

So here we just want to put our contact
information for any questions or concerns regarding

wat er, wastewater, or solid waste that aren't rel ated
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to the things that are enconpassed by this water

| icence. So you can contact nyself, Kayla C outer, or
Megan Lusty at the provided contact information. Thank
you so nuch

THE CHAI R Thank you. Thank you for your
presentati on.

Al right. Nowl'd like to turnto Item9 in the
agenda, intervenors -- | will allowintervenors to ask
questions. W'Ill start with Crown-Indi genous Rel ati ons
and Northern Affairs.
Questioning of Applicant, Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet
M5. W LSON: Christine WI son.

W don't have any questions.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Envi ronnment and d i mate Change Canada, do you have
any questions?

MS. MALLON: St ephi ni e Mal | on, Envi ronnent
and i mate Change Canada.

We have no questions. Thank you.

THE CHAl R Thank you.

| s there any questions fromthe public related to
this application presentation?

Ckay. | take that there is no questions.

|"d like to ask the staff of the Nunavut \Water
Board. |If you have any questions, please proceed.

M5. AUTUT: Thank you, M. Chair.
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St ephani e Autut, executive director wwth the Water
Boar d.

The staff do have a couple of questions.
THE CHAI R: Go ahead.
MR, KHARATYAN: Karen Kharatyan, the director
of technical services with Water Board. Thank you,
M. Chair. Thank you, Stephanie.

| would like to have sonme clarification regarding
G\ CGS, a response to Crown-1ndi genous Rel ati ons
Northern Affairs Comments Nunber 2 for our record. It
was stated that GN, or Governnent of Nunavut, did
undertake a study of their infrastructure for future
i nspection of -- related to inspection -- type of
I nspection, frequency, et cetera, of this
i nfrastructure.

The first clarification is whether the study is
bei ng undertaken by Governnent of Nunavut over -- or by
a third-party, like, engineering firmor other
third-party organi zation. Thank you.

THE CHAl R Appl i cant.
M5. CLOUTER Thank you so nuch. Kayla
Cl outer, G\ CGS.

| am under the inpression that this study is being
undertaken -- G\N-CGS has hired a third party to
conplete this study.

Megan, | amunsure if you are able to offer sone
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nore insight on that fromyour end. | do know it is
sonet hing that the infrastructure fol ks were worKking
on.

MS. LUSTY: Megan Lusty, G\ CGS.

Yes. | can confirmthat we have hired a
third-party consulting engineer. Dillon Consulting is
currently doing that report and review for us of the
type of engineering qualifications required and the
frequency they woul d suggest in having these
engi neering inspections conpleted of the water |icence
infrastructure. As Kayla has previously nentioned, we
wi Il have that report available at the end of the -- or

close to the end of the 2023/24 fiscal year. Thank

you.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Go ahead, Karen.
MR. KHARATYAN: Thank you, M. Chair. Again,

a followup regarding these itens. Karen Kharatyan
from Wat er Boar d.

Yes. Can we have for our record kind of, yes,
comm tnment by GN-CGS that these reports will be
available for -- or within the annual report of 2023 to

be submtted by the end of March?

And anot her question will be -- or a follow up
wi Il be whether this report -- this third-party report
will make a clear reconmendation specific to
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comunities or specific to different type of
infrastructure, so trying to understand whether this
reconmmendati on could be inplenented directly for
Chesterfield Inlet infrastructure or sone assessnent
will be required by G\-CGS regarding this
recommendati on and potential inplenentation for
different communities. Thank you.
M5. LUSTY: Megan Lusty. Thank you for
t he question.

Yes. This question regarding the engineering
I nspection as a requirenent of the water |icences has
cone up previously, and, as such, that is why G\ CGS
has contracted Dillon Consulting to take a wholistic
| ook at this request and all of the nunicipal water
licences that G\ CGS provides support on. And while
it's not specifically |ooking at the infrastructure
required in the Chesterfield Inlet licence, it's
| ooki ng at the common types of infrastructure that
muni ci palities have |icenced, so the different and
simlar types of sewage | agoons, solid waste sites,
et cetera.

This is going to be conpleted in the 23/24 fiscal

year. | cannot -- | cannot provide a conmtnent that
it wll be received at the sane tine as the 2023 annual
reports. It will be available by the 2024 annual
reports.
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MR. KHARATYAN: Karen Kharatyan from Wt er
Boar d.

Megan, nmaybe last clarification, yes, regarding
your expectation, so whether this report or
recomendation fromthis report could be inplenented
directly to Chesterfield infrastructure. For exanple,
we are speaki ng about Chesterfield or additional by
Governnent of Nunavut will be required related to
I npl ementati on of these engi neering recommendati ons.

M5. LUSTY: Megan Lusty, CGS.

Just to clarify the question, Karen, you are
| ooking if -- whether the report wll require sone
interpretation by GNHCGS for its applicability to the
Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet water licence? Is -- did
| understand your question correctly?

MR. KHARATYAN: Kar en Kharatyan from Wat er
Board. Thank you, M. Chair.

Yes. The question is whether you will -- once you
have this report, whether your expectation is that
Dillon Consulting wll recomrend a type of inspection,
the frequency, that you will inplenent it just based on
this recommendation, or GN-CGS will assess their
recommendat i on and nake another, yes, assessnent or --

I don't know -- decision regarding the inplenentation
or what type of inspection wll be required that nmay be

applicable to Chesterfield, so trying to understand
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if -- if -- in the potential future renewal |icence,
they both include a term "condition", l|ike, inspection
of infrastructure wll be conducted as per

recommendation by this third-party report or
assessnent, whether this termand condition wll be
actually valid and conducted and enforceable in the
future. Thank you.
M5. LUSTY: Megan Lusty. Thank you,
M. Chair. And thank you, Karen, for clarification.
Yes. Qur intention with this report is to share
it wth the Nunavut Water Board and within the common
i ntervenors wth CIRNAC and ECCC as this clause
regardi ng the engi neering inspection has |ong been a
cl ause that the nunicipalities have not been able to
neet on their own and has not been feasible under the
current licence termfor CGS engineers to inspect as it
requires a very specialized skill set to be able to
conduct the type of dam safety inspections and ot her
required inspections on the |licence infrastructure.
So this engineering report fromDbDillon wll
clarify the qualifications needed and al so the
frequency that woul d be suggested in conducting these
because it is not typical practice that a dam safety
i nspection would be conpl eted every single year, and it
is also financially unfeasible for that |evel of

specialist to get into every single nunicipal --
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muni cipality every year to be able to conplete this
i nspection as well.

So wth this report, | don't -- | believe it wll
be a conversation piece for the Water Board
muni ci palities, G\-CGS as nunici pal support, and the
intervenors to all review together to determ ne how
this would be applicable to the Iicence terns going
forward. Thank you.

THE CHAl R Thank you.

Any ot her questions, staff.

MR. KHARATYAN: Karen Kharatyan from Wt er
Boar d.

No ot her questions at this tine. Thank you,

M. Chair.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Panel nenbers, do you have questions? Elizabeth?
V5. COPLAND: Thank you. Matna. | have one
qguesti on.

What is the timng of the new wastewater treatnent
facility? Is this in this application or for future
amendnent ? Thank you.

MS. LUSTY: Megan Lusty, G\-CGS.  Thank
you, Chair, and thank you for the question.

The com ng of the new wastewater facility is
brought -- is currently unknown because it is based on

the Governnent of Nunavut's capital funding process,
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and, as such, | amnot able to commt to a tineline on
this project as funding has not yet been conmtted to
upgradi ng the wastewater infrastructure within the
Muni ci pality of Chesterfield Inlet. Therefore, it is
not on the current licence renewal.

This woul d be an additional anmendnent application
that would be submtted once we have the funding
approved for this project, and | cannot confirm whet her
or not that will be wthin the ten-year tineline that
we are currently requesting. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Thank you.

Do you have a question?

M5. SILOU | thought we weren't supposed
to ask questions until after |unch.

THE CHAI R I f you want to.

M5. SILOU That was the direction from

| egal counsel .

THE CHAI R kay. Okay. WwW'll take a
break now for |unch, and we can cone back at 1:30 or
so. 1:30. If you can cone back at 1:30. W'IlI|l take a
break for now.

V5. MEADOWS: M. Chair, just for
clarification for the people online, it's 1:30 central
time that we will be back after |lunch. Thank you,

M. Chair.
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( PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED UNTI L 1:30 PM

( PROCEEDI NGS RECOMMENCED AT 1:36 PM
THE CHAI R So we have our presenters here
this afternoon. | would like to call CIRNAC to have

their presentation. Before you go on to the

presentation, | would like to have | egal counsel take
the floor.

Ter esa.
V5. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa

Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut Water Board.
So, M. Chair, if | can have the w tnesses state

and spell their name for the record, please.

MS. W LSON: Christine WI son,

CHRI-ST-I-NE WIson, WI-L-S-ON.

MR. KEI M Thank you, M. Chair. It's
Andrew Keikm A-NDRE-WK-E-I1-M
M5. MEADOWS: Thank you.

CHRI STI NE W LSON and ANDREW KEI M Swor n
V5. NMEADOWS: Teresa Meadows, | egal counsel
for the Nunavut Water Board.

So, M. Chair, | have hard copies of the
presentation materials that were filed in advance of
the public hearing and on whi ch Crown-I ndi genous
Rel ati ons and Northern Affairs intends to rely at this

public hearing, and | propose to nmark those as the next
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exhibits in this public hearing. And, M. Chair, those
are ny procedural matters.

EXH BIT 5 - Hard Copy, Power Point

Presentation, Minicipality of Chesterfield

Inlet Application for Type “A” Water Licence

3AM CHE- - - -, Nunavut Water Board Public

Heari ng Novenber 15-16, 2023 (English)

EXHBIT 6 - Hard Copy, Power Poi nt

Presentation, Municipality of Chesterfield

Inlet Application for Type “A” Water Licence

3AM CHE- - - -, Nunavut Water Board Public
Heari ng Novenber 15-16, 2023 (Il nuktitut)
THE CHAI R Thank you, Teresa.

So, Crown-1ndi genous Rel ati ons and Northern
Affairs, go ahead with your presentation.
Presentati on by Crown-1ndi genous Rel ations and Northern
Af fairs Canada
M5. W LSON: Thank you.

Crown- I ndi genous Relations will be referred to as
"Cl RNAC' from herein.

|"d like to thank the Nunavut Water Board for
organi zing this public hearing and giving us the
opportunity to present CIRNAC s position on the
application to renew and anend Type "A" water |icence
3AM CHE---- submtted by the Governnent of Nunavut,

Departnment of Comrunity Services, on behal f of
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Chesterfield Inlet.

For sinplicity, I'll refer to the Nunavut Water
Board as the "Board" and for the -- for Chesterfield
Inlet as the "Applicant”.

My nanme is Christine Wlson. | ama water
managenent coordi nator with Cl RNAC s water resource
division. Joining ne is Andrew Keim nmanager of water
resour ces.

This presentation will proceed in the follow ng
order starting with CIRNAC s roles and
responsibilities, contributions to the water |icence
review, the technical review comrents and
recommendati ons submtted to the Board, and, finally,
the presentation will wap up with a sunmary of
actual -- actionable commtnents and questi ons.

CIRNAC is a reqgulatory intervenor. Wter
resources works to protect, conserve, and increase
Nunavunmm ut' s under st andi ng of Nunavut's wat er
resources. CIRNAC provides advice to the Board on
matters of water licencing under Article 13 of the
Nunavut Land Cl ains Agreenent. |t supports water
pl anni ng and policy devel opnent and devel opnent of
wat er nonitoring prograns in Nunavut.

CIRNAC s responsibilities, mandate, and
obligations are in line with the pieces of |egislation

shown on the slide.
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As the Board has explained in their introduction
and application history, G\-CGS on behalf of the
Appl i cant provided the Board with a renewal - anendnent
application and supporting docunents for a Type "A"
wat er |icence.

All of CIRNAC s recommendations are currently
considered either resolved or resolved by conm tnent.
We have used the term"resolved" to indicate that a
resol ution was found between Cl RNAC and the Applicant
or "resolved by commtnent” to indicate the Applicant
and CI RNAC have agreed on a path forward to resol ution.
W will provide an el aboration on each comm t nent
further in the presentation.

| will nove on to the technical review
recommendations starting with Recomendation 1. Daily
wat er use has been netered fromthe water supply
facility rather than the freshwater intake at First
Lake. The freshwater intake at First Lake is used only
approxi mately two weeks during the annual resupply. In
accordance wth the Applicant's current water |icence,
the Applicant is required to neter freshwater obtained
fromthe source or First Lake, not the water supply
facility.

Cl RNAC recommends that the daily water use be
netered at First Lake and the volunes be provided in

the annual report under Monitoring Station CHE-1. The
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Applicant commtted to recording daily freshwater

vol unes from First Lake in the annual report. CIRNAC
considers this issue resolved -- resolved by
commtnent. Sorry.

The Applicant's current water |icence states the
i cencee shall record -- shall nmeasure and record in
cubic netres the daily, nonthly, and annual quantities
of water extracted for all purposes at Mnitoring
Program Station CHE-1 and water extracted at the water
supply facility punp house.

The application has conmtted to recording daily
wat er volunes at First Lake intake to neet the
conditions of the licence. An additional nonitoring
station wll be required at the water supply facility.

Cl RNAC reconmends an additional nonitoring station
be added at the water supply facility CHE-1a. This
condition CIRNAC believe to be resolved by comm tnent,
t hough based on the GN' s previous presentation,
clarification is required by Cl RNAC.

Cl RNAC reviewed the quality assurance and quality
control plan that was provided with the application.
ClI RNAC noted that Monitoring Station CHE-2 was not
referred to in the QA QC plan and recomended t hat an
addendum be submtted to the Board. The Applicant
agreed wth the reconmendati on and resubmtted the pl an

July 11th. CIRNAC reviewed the plan and considers this
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I ssue resol ved.

Cl RNAC revi ewed the operation and nai ntenance pl an
for the solid waste facility, which included hazardous
wast e managenent. ClI RNAC noted contradictory
i nformation, which -- included in Block 14 of the
application regarding the use of the local |andfarmfor
di sposal of contam nated soils. The Applicant
clarified information in a response to Cl RNAC on
June 29th. CIRNAC considers this issue to be resol ved.

Cl RNAC reviewed the operation and mai nt enance pl an
for the solid waste facility and noted that the GPS
coordi nates provided were incorrect. The Applicant
agreed to provide the GPS | ocations to be collected
with a Cl RNAC i nspector and resubmtted to the Board
wi thin one year. CIRNAC considers this recomendation
to be resolved by conmm tnent.

Cl RNAC revi ewed the operation and nai ntenance pl an
for the sewage disposal facility. Currently, sewage is
di sposed of in a detention cell or |agoon-style
facility. The operation and nai ntenance plan detail ed
sanpl e -- sanpling, which was required for adequate
sl udge managenent.

Cl RNAC recommended t hat sludge characterization is
conpl eted prior to renoval or disposal of sludge. The
Appl i cant agreed that if sludge is renoved fromthe

facility, sanpling would take place prior to disposal.
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Cl RNAC considers this recommendation to be resol ved by
conmm t ment .

CI RNAC revi ewed the operation and mai nt enance pl an
for the sewage disposal facility and noted an error in
Section 8 regarding CHE-4. The Applicant resubmtted
the plan with the corrections on July 11th. Cl RNAC
considers this recomendati on resol ved.

Cl RNAC revi ewed the operations and nai nt enance
plan for the sewage di sposal facility and noted an
Issue with the GPS | ocations for the nonitoring
stations in Table 3, Section 8. The Applicant agreed
to confirmthe nonitoring |locations with an inspector
and resubmt the plan to the Board. ClRNAC considers
this recommendation to be resol ved by comm tnent.

I n accordance with the current water |icence,

Part F, Itenms 6 and 7, the Applicant was required to
conduct geotech inspections of engineered structures in
the community and provide a report to the Board for a
review annual ly. ClI RNAC found no record of a

geot echni cal inspection on the Board's FTP website
during the termof this current |icence.

On March 29th, the Applicant and CIRNAC net to
di scuss this condition. The Applicant raised concern
with the type and frequency of inspections required for
the structures found in this community. The Applicant

committed to providing a report analyzing the type and

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




50

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

frequency of inspections required by types. The report
wll be submtted no |ater than March 31st, 2025.

Cl RNAC recommended that an additional 15 days is
added to the 60-day subm ssion deadline for the reports
detailed in Part F, Item6 and 7, of the current
licence. CIRNAC considers this issue to be resol ved by
conmi t ment .

Fi ve resol ved conditions and four resol ved by

commtnment -- sorry -- reconmendations. You can see, |
believe -- Recommendation 2 requires GNto clarify if
they wll be providing -- Recommendation 2 is -- nmay

not be resolved at this point until we have information
fromthe GNif they will be submtting the vol unes used
at the water supply facility.

The summary of next -- sunmmary of next steps.
Resol ved issues requiring further action are
Recommendation 2, collection of data and including it
in the annual report; Reconmendation 5, collection of
| ocation data during the 2023 field season, which
shoul d be corrected to the 2024 field season;
Recommendati on 6, conplete sludge analysis prior to the
conmm ssioning of the future sewage facilities;
Recommendation 8, collection of location -- during the
2023 and 2024 field season; and, finally,
Recommendation 9, the data collection and report

devel oped by 2025.
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CIRNAC w Il continue to work with G\- CGS and
Applicants through water |icence application review
process with the aimof protecting Nunavut's inland
wat ers whil e pronoting sustainabl e devel opnent.

l"d like to say -- | would like to thank the
Nunavut Water Board for holding this public hearing and
to the Applicant for their efforts in addressing our
comments. This will conclude our presentation. W
wi Il now take any questions.

THE CHAI R Okay. Thank you. Thank you
Cl RNAC for your presentation.

Now open up for questions. W will start with the
Appl i cant .

Questioni ng of Crown-1ndi genous Rel ati ons and Northern
Af fairs Canada

THE CHAI R G\ CGS, you may start asking
guestions, if you have a question to the presentation
by Cl RNAC.

M5. CLOUTER Thank you, Chair. No -- Kayla
Cl outer, G\ CGS.

No questions fromnyself or Megan Lusty. Thank
you.

THE CHAI R Thank you.

Environnent and d i mate Change Canada, do you have
a question to CIRNAC s presentation?

V5. MALLON: St ephi ni e Mal | on, Envi ronnent
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and Cimate Change Canada.

W have no questions. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Menbers of the public, do you have any questions
to CIRNAC s presentation?

Ckay. | take that there's no questions.

Let's call the Water Board staff. Do you have
questions?
MS. AUTUT: Thank you, M. Chair.
St ephani e Autut with the Nunavut Water Board.

Yes, M. Chair. The staff do have sone

guestions -- clarification questions at this tine.
Thank you.

THE CHAI R Thank you. Go ahead.

MR. SHAI KH: Thank you, M. Chair. This is

Mohammad Ali with the Nunavut Water Board.

| would just like the GNto respond to Cl RNAC s
Comment Number 2, whether they will be able to stick
with the conm tnent as was di scussed during the
technical neeting. This is CIRNAC s presentation
Slide Nunmber 6.
M5. CLOUTER: Kayla Couter, G\ CGS. Thank
you.

So in terns of Recommendation 2 regarding
Moni toring Location CHE-1la, we have commtted to

continue reporting quantities fromthe water supply
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facility as we have been. So that is nonthly and
annual quantities fromthe facility with daily
gquantities being provided fromthat new nonitoring
| ocation, CHE-1a, as that is the water supply | ake.
Thank you.

MR. SHAI KH: Thank you, Kayl a.

Cl RNAC, woul d you like to respond?

M5. W LSON: Thank you. This is Christine
W son.

Yes. So they have confirned the original
commtnent, that they will provide that information if
an additional nonitoring station is put into the
licence. Thank you.
MS. AUTUT: Thank you, M. Chair. W have
no further questions.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Panel nmenbers, do you have any questions to

Cl RNAC?

M5. SI LOU No questions. Sarah. Thank
you.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Ckay. Thank you, CIRNAC, for your presentation.

Now, I'd like to turnto ltem14 to 16 in the
agenda, presentations and questioni ng of associ ati ons,
agenci es, or nenbers of the public who wish to nake a

presentation or speak to the Board. Teresa and then
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Cl RNAC.

Go ahead, Teresa.

MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa
Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut WAter Board.

So two itens, M. Chair. The first is that -- |
bel i eve that Crown-Indi genous Rel ati ons and Northern
Affairs maybe had another -- was there another item
that was -- where you're -- were not very clear on the
resolution? Everything's adequate. All right.

The second thing is is that, M. Chair,

Environnent and C i mate Change Canada has al so provi ded
presentation materials, and I'massunmng wll be
presenting next in the order of presentations. W were
not certain when the agenda was first devel oped whet her
or not Environnent and Cinate Change Canada woul d be
able to participate, but they are online. So it's ny
understanding that they will be able to nmake this
presentati on.

And so, M. Chair, if you will indulge nme, I would
ask Stephinie Mallon to state and spell her nanme for
the record, and then we can affirmher. Thank you,

M. Chair.
THE CHAI R Thank you for that direction.

W'd like to call Environnment and dinmate Change
Canada. |If you have any presentation, you may do so.

Thank you.
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V5. MALLON: Perfect.

My nane is Stephinie Mallon. It's spelled

ST-E-P-HI-NI1-E MA-L-L-ON.

STEPH NI E MALLON, Affirnmed

V5. MEADOWS: Teresa Meadows, |egal counse
for the Nunavut Water Board.

So, M. Chair, | have a hard copy of the
Power Poi nt presentation materials that were filed by
Environnent and i mate Change Canada in advance of the
public hearing, and | propose to nmark those as the next
exhibit in this public hearing. And thank you,

M. Chair. Those are ny procedural nmatters.

EXH BIT 7 - Hard Copy, Power Poi nt

Presentation, Hanl et of Chesterfield Inlet

Type A Water Licence Application Public

Hearing Presentation by Environnent and

Cli mat e Change Canada (Engli sh)

THE CHAI R Thank you, Teresa.

So, Environnent and dinmate Change Canada, go
ahead with your presentation.

Presentation by Environment and Cimate Change Canada
M5. MALLON: So --

MS. MEADOWS: Ms. Mallon, | can confirmthat
we were seeing the sharing of your screen, but we are
not now.

V5. MALLON: Ckay. Sorry. | think it
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showed the wong screen, so give ne one second while |
navigate this. I'mused to -- okay. It should be
that. Are you seeing the presentation now?

M5. MEADOWG: Yes, we are. Thank you.

M5. MALLON: Ckay. Perfect. Thank you.

Good afternoon, M. Chair, Board nenbers, Elders,
community nmenbers, Board staff, and fellow intervenors.
My nane is Stephinie Mallon, and |I'm an acting senior
envi ronnment al assessnent officer wth Environnent and
C i mat e Change Canada.

Today | wll be presenting on our contribution in
the Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet water |icence
anmendnment process. Apologies that we do not at this
time have a translated version of this presentation.
One will be provided to the Board follow ng the public
heari ng.

| wll start by presenting the departnent's
mandate, briefly touch on the acts and | egislation
rel evant to Environnment and C i nmate Change Canada, and
then outline the coments and recomrendati ons provi ded
in Environnment and O imate Change Canada's technica
review of the water |icence anendnent application.

Environnent and dimate Change Canada' s nmandate
i ncl udes the preservati on and enhancenent of the
quality of the natural environnent, including water,

air, and soil quality, and the coordination of the
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rel evant policies and prograns of the Governnent of
Canada. It also includes renewabl e resources such as
m gratory birds and ot her non-donestic flora and fauna,
nmet eor ol ogy, and the enforcenent of rules and
regul ati ons.

Environnent and dinmate Change Canada's nmandate is
governed by the Departnent of the Environnment Act, The
Canadi an Environnental Protection Act, the pollution
prevention provisions of the Fisheries Act, The
M gratory Birds Convention Act, and The Species At Ri sk
Act .

Environnent and i mte Change Canada submtted
five technical review comments in the current process.
Al of our comments were resolved by the clarifications
and conmtnents submtted by the Applicant to the
Nunavut Water Board on May 3rd, 2023. Environnent and
Climate Change Canada is continuing to participate in
thi s amendnent application process in observer status.

| will now provide further detail on Environnent
and Cimate Change Canada's technical coments and
recommendati ons. For your convenience, a |list of our
technical coments is also presented in Annex 1 of this
presentati on.

Environnent and d i nmate Change Canada recomended
that open burning be limted on-site where possible and

that alternative waste managenent practices be
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explored. Furthernore, if open burning of waste was
requi red, Environnment and Cimte Change Canada asked
for confirmation that appropriate neteorol ogica

condi tions be met beforehand. This comment was

consi dered resolved by commtnent, that appropriate
nmet eorol ogic conditions will be net for open burning.

Environnment and d i mate Change Canada asked if any
sl udge nonitoring was planned, the frequency of the
monitoring, and to clarify if the sewage facility is
havi ng decreased treatnent performance based on sl udge
volunmes. This comment was consi dered resolved by the
clarification provided on sludge nmanagenent procedures.

Envi ronment and d i mate Change Canada requested
addi tional information on the runoff collection
practices for the solid waste facility, including
clarification that all runoff associated with the
facility is collected and tested prior to discharge.
Thi s coment was consi dered resol ved by the
clarification provided regarding runoff sanpling
procedures and results.

Environnment and C i mate Change Canada noted a
clerical error in the operations and mai nt enance plan.
This comment was consi dered resol ved by the
clarification provided and the commtnent to update the
clerical error in the docunent.

Envi ronment and i mate Change Canada noted two
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areas where contact information was incorrect. This
comment was consi dered resolved by the coomitnent to
update the contact information in the docunent.

Thi s concl udes our presentation. Once again,
thank you to everyone for your attention, and thank you
to the Nunavut Water Board for the opportunity to
contribute to this process. And | would be open to any
guesti ons.

THE CHAl R Thank you, Environnment and
Cimate Change Canada, for the intervention.

W'l |l open up for questions.

Questioni ng of Environnent and Cinmate Change Canada
THE CHAI R We'd |ike to start with the
Applicant and CGS. If you have any questions, you nmay

do so.
M5. CLOUTER Kayla C outer, G\ CGS. Thank
you, Chair.

No questions fromus. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Cl RNAC, do you have any questions?
M5. W LSON: Christine Wlson. W have no
guestions. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Menbers of the public, if you have any questions
to the Environnent and C i mte Change Canada

i ntervention.
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MR. SAMMURTCK: (1 NUKTI TUT SPOKEN -
| NTERPRETATI ON NOT PROVI DED)
THE CHAI R Thank you.

Wat er Board staff, do you have any questions?
M5. AUTUT: Thank you, M. Chair.
St ephani e Autut, Nunavut WAter Board.
The Water Board staff do not have any questions at
this time. Thank you.
THE CHAl R Thank you.
Panel nenbers, do you have questions?
M5. SILOU Sarah Sil ou.
No question. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Thank you, Environnment and

Cimate Change Canada, for your presentation. Thank

you.
M5. MALLON: Thank you.
THE CHAI R l'd like to call at |east a

ten-m nute break before we nove on with our agenda.

W' || have a ten-m nute break

( ADJ OURNVENT)

THE CHAI R kay. Thank you, Teresa. o
ahead.

MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa

Meadows, | egal counsel for the Nunavut \Water Board.
So, M. Chair, we have an additional participant

who is on the phone line, and if | can just ask themto
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state their nane and their -- the organi zation that
they are working with. W' d appreciate having that for

the Board's record of the public hearing.

THE CHAI R Thank you. Go ahead.

MR, HOCEY: Yes. (Good afternoon.
Sorry. | just want to confirmyou can hear ne.

V5. MEADOWS: Thank you.

We can hear you, but you are a little bit nuffl ed.
So if you can speak slowy and clearly, that would be
much appr eci at ed.
MR. HOCEY: Ckay. This is Stephen Hooey.
| amwith the Governnent of Nunavut, Departnent of
Communi ty and Governnment Services, and |'mthe director
of the comunity infrastructure division.
M5. MEADOWG: Thank you.

Can you spell your |ast nane for us, please.
MR. HOCEY: Certainly. 1'Il spell it all.
The first nane is SST-E-P-HE-N, and ny |ast nanme is
HOOEY.
V5. NMEADOWS: Thanks very nmuch. Teresa
Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut Water Board. W
appreciate that. Thank you for giving us that update.

Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa Meadows, | egal
counsel for the Nunavut \Water Board.

And, M. Chair, for those of who are seeing
“rdwyer"” on the line, that is Richard Dwer, who is the

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




62

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

Wat er Board's manager of licencing. So it is not -- it
Is not sonmeone from outside the organi zation calling
in. And, M. Chair, | believe that is all of the
participants that we have on Zoom

| s there anyone else, Robert? No. That's all we
have on Zoom So thank you, M. Chair. Those are ny
procedural matters.

THE CHAI R Thank you.

Yeah. It's kind of an unusual public hearing. W
have here with us quite a few on the Zoomwho is not --
physically not in the present. Kind of for ne to --
kind of to keep tracking them invisible people. Sorry
about that. Yeah. Anyway, |I'd like to nove on with
our agenda.

On the Item 17 in our agenda, G\N-CGS, do you w sh
to make any comments to reply to subm ssions of the
i ntervenors?

M5. CLOUTER Kayla Cl outer, G\ CGS. Thank
you, Chair.

We have no comments or replies to make at this
time. Thank you so nuch.

THE CHAI R Thank you.

Now, let's call for each party to provide brief
closing remarks starting with intervenors and endi ng
wi th Applicant.

I'"d like to call brief closing remarks by Cl RNAC
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Go ahead.
Cl osing Remarks by Crown-1ndi genous Rel ati ons and
Nort hern Affairs Canada
M5. W LSON: Christine WI son.

Thank you, everyone, for the -- we have no other
remar ks. Thank you.
THE CHAI R Thank you.

I'"d like to call Environnment and Cimte Change
Canada.
Gl osing Remarks by Environnent and dinmate Change
Canada
MS. MALLON: St ephi ni e Mal | on, Environnent
and d i mate Change Canada.

We have no further remarks. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Thank you.

Appl i cant.
Cl osing Remarks by the Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet
MR | VEY: W have no remarks. Thank
you.
THE CHAl R Thank you.

G\ CGS.

C osi ng Remar ks by Nunavut of Governnent, Community and
Gover nnent Servi ces
M5. CLOUTER: Kayla Couter, G\ CGS. Thank
you, M. Chair.

W would just |ike to take this opportunity to
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thank the Municipality of Chesterfield Inlet for
continuing to work towards neeting the conditions of
their water licence and allowng GN-CGS to work with
them t hrough the renewal process.

W would also like to take the opportunity to
t hank the Nunavut Water Board, ClIRNAC, and Environnent
and Cimate Change Canada as intervenors just in

col | aborating --

M5. NMEADOWS: Kayl a.

M5. CLOUTER -- ahead of this public
hearing to resol ve --

V5. MEADOWS: Ms. O outer.

M5. CLOUTER -- or resolve by conmtnent --
V5. NMEADOWS: If you can --

M5. CLOUTER: -- all the comments that we

have received.

M5. MEADOWG: |"mjust going to ask --
M5. CLOUTER Yes. Thank you.
V5. MEADOWS: |"mjust going to ask you to

start again and sl ow down. Pause at the end of each
sentence. Qur interpreters are racing to keep up, and
we've got lots of tinme this afternoon. So feel free to
take your tine.

M5. CLOUTER: Sorry about that. Thank you
so nuch.

So, yeah, we just want to thank the Municipality
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of Chesterfield Inlet for continuing to work towards
the comm ssions of their water |icence. W also wanted
to thank themfor allowing us to work with them through
this renewal and anendnent process.

We al so want to thank the Nunavut Water Board,

CI RNAC, and Environnent and d i nmate Change Canada j ust
as intervenors and col |l aborating with G\-CGS ahead of
this public hearing to resolve all of the commtnents
and comments received.

THE CHAI R Go ahead, Teresa.

MS. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa
Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut Water Board.

So, M. Chair, as it does not happen very often,
we are well ahead of schedule even though we started
|late today. So | would like to thank everyone for
bei ng very efficient and very focused, but we al so have
an evening session conmng up tonight with the
comuni ty.

So this is the part in the hearing where normally
what we woul d be doing is having closing remarks from
the Chair, but because we have not yet heard fromthe
community, we will defer that until the close of the
comunity session this evening.

And, M. Chair, if there are any final questions
or comments fromany party, if they can just identify

that they have those additional questions or comments,
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we can deal with themnow But, if not, what | woul d
suggest is that we adjourn until 7:00 tonight at which
timte we will have the comunity information session,
and dependi ng on what tine that closes out and what
time the questions have been dealt with fromthe
community, M. Chair may cl ose out the public hearing
with his remarks, or we nmay defer that until first
t hi ng t onorrow nor ni ng.

So wth that, M. Chair, | will stop there, and if

there are any final questions or comments that need to

be addressed this afternoon, | wll |eave it there.
THE CHAI R Thank you, Teresa.
Mayor of Chesterfield Inlet, | think, final --

want to say. Thank you.
Comments by the Mayor of Chesterfield Inlet
MR SAMMURTCXK: (I NUKTI TUT SPOKEN -
| NTERPRETATI ON NOT PROVI DED) the staff, | thank you
very much. |'m hoping you all have public tonight
because it's working hours right now, and it'll be --
but 1'd like to thank you. This is a very inportant
hearing. Like, and the weather is changing. Like, we
used to have ice in Cctober on our seawater, but now
it's all clear. Still no ice yet because of climate
change.

And we even seemto have fog in the wintertine.

W never used to have fog during the w nter nonths.
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These are really affecting our waters. W have to be
very careful. W need to do a |lot of work, and we need
to -- like, we all see the difference.

But thanks a |ot for comi ng, and as our comrunity
i n Chester has so nuch to do, we have to continue
wor ki ng together. Thank you.

THE CHAI R Quj annam i k, M. Mayor.

Let's adjourn for now. Cone back here at 7 -- oh,
by 6:30 or so to get ready for 7:00. And then after
the community session, |like |ead counsel said, |I'll do
my closing remarks right after the community session.

Thank you. See you again tonight.

( PROCEEDI NGS ADJOURNED UNTI L 7:00 PM

( PROCEEDI NGS RECOMVENCED AT 7: 32 PM

Communi ty Session Opening Remarks by the Chair

THE CHAI R Wel cone to the community
session for the Nunavut of Water Board's public hearing
inrelation to the renewal - anendnent application
submtted by the Haml et of Chesterfield Inlet viaits
representative, Governnent of Nunavut, Community and
Governnent Services -- | wll refer to as the "Hanl et",
"GN-CGS', or "Applicant” -- with the Nunavut Water
Board for water |icence 3AM CHE----.

My nane is Lootie Toomasie. | amthe Chair of
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Nunavut Water Board. Wile | was chairing this
norning, |I'mgoing to ask Stephanie Autut, the NWB's

executive director, to chair tonight's session.

St ephani e.
MS. AUTUT: Al right. Thank you,
M. Chair.

So tonight's session is part of the Water Board's
public hearing to consider the replacenent of the
expired water |icence which authorizes the use of water
and deposit of wastes associated wth the water and
wast e managenent infrastructure at Haml et of
Chesterfield Inlet's nmunicipal undertaking.

So this is an opportunity for the Applicant, the
I ntervenors, and nenbers of the conmmunity to present
their final comments, concerns, and questions about the
application to the Water Board before the Board nakes
its decision about the renewal -anendnent application.

The Board appreciates you all comng out to
participate in this inmportant neeting.

Before we get started, | would |like to ask Mary
Rose to once again provide us with an opening prayer.
Openi ng Prayer
V5. AUTUT: Thank you, Mary Rose.

So, David, thanks for attending. W're going to
begin the presentations. Recognizing you were here

this norning, we're not -- | won't need to go through
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all the introductory comments again that you heard from
the chai rman this norning.

| wll point out that the presentations are
avai l abl e at the back table. Robert has the ability to
answer any questions you m ght have related to the
presentations, and if you do need the interpreting
equi pmrent, Robert can provide that to you as well.

W will get started with a presentation by the
staff at the Nunavut Water Board.

So, Karen, if you and Ali can offer us that

presentation, that would be appreciated. Thank you.

MR. KHARATYAN: Thank you, Stephanie.
Ali -- or Mhamad Ali Shai kh, who works on this
file, wll make a presentation. Thank you.
THE CHAI R: Go ahead.
V5. MEADOWS: Thank you, M. Chair. Teresa

Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut WAter Board.

So, M. Chair, | have a hard copy of this
Power Poi nt presentation, and | propose to file it as
the next exhibit in this public hearing. And those are
nmy procedural matters, M. Chair.

EXH BIT 8 - Hard Copy, Power Poi nt

Presentation, Public Hearing for Hanl et of

Chesterfield Inlet Application for Type “A’

Wat er Licence (English/Inuktitut)

THE CHAI R Thank you.
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Go ahead.
Comuni ty Session Presentation by the Nunavut Water
Boar d
MR. SHAI KH: Thank you, M. Chair.

Good evening, everyone. M nane is Mohamad Ali

Shai kh. ['"ma technical advisor wth the Nunavut Water
Board, and | will be delivering this presentation
t oni ght .

Starting on Slide Nunber 2, we will go over the
Nunavut Water Board's background, type of
aut hori zations issued by the Board, the Water Board's
i cenci ng process, overview and scope of the
application, the procedural history, followed by next
steps in the application, and then we'll have sone tine
for questions.

The Nunavut Water Board is an institution of
public governnent, or | PG established under Article 13
of the Nunavut Agreenent. The Nunavut Water Board has
responsibilities and powers over the regul ation, use,
and managenent of freshwater in the Nunavut settl enent
ar ea.

The objective of the Nunavut Water Board is to
provi de conservation and utilization of waters in
Nunavut, except in a national park, in a manner that
wi Il provide the optinum benefit fromthose waters for

Nunavut's residents in particular and Canadi ans in
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gener al .

On to Slide Nunber 5. Based on the Water Board's
mandat e and the Nunavut water regul ations, the Board
may i ssue one of the follow ng authorizations for the
use of water and/or deposit of waste.

The first one is an authorization wthout a
licence, which is issued if the use of water is |ess
than 50 cubic netres per day. |If the requirenent of
water is between 50 and 299 cubic netres per day, then
a Type "B" licence is required. |If the use is nore
than 300 cubic nmetres per day, which is in this case, a
Type "A" |licence is required.

| will now briefly go over the Type "A" |icencing
process. So the process starts with the NVB recei Vi ng
the application. It confirnms classification of the
undert aki ng and type of license as a Type "A" |icense.
After this, the Water Board conducts a concordance
review, and, if required, the Applicant provides
addi ti onal information.

Once the application is deened conplete, the NVB
I ssues a notice of application and requests a techni cal
revi ew and subm ssion of comrents and i nfornmation
requests with a 30-day mnimumtineline.

On to next slide. Parties submt witten
representations. At this stage, if required, the

Appl i cant provides additional information or
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clarification.

The next step is the technical neeting and
pre-hearing conference, or TM and PHC. Followed by the
technical neeting, the NWB i ssues a pre-hearing
conference decision. At this stage, again, if directed
by the PHC decision, the Applicant may provide
addi tional information. After that, the NWB issues a
notice of public hearing 60 days ahead.

During these 60 days, parties exchange witten
I nterventions and prepare for the public hearing. Then
the NVB hol ds the public hearing, which is the stage
where we are at right now.

Foll owed by this public hearing, the N\B nay issue
a decision to approve or not approve the application
wth its reasons to the Mnister of Northern Affairs.
Followed by this, the Mnister may decide to approve or
not approve the NWB' s deci sion.

| will now go over a quick overview over the
Ham et of Chesterfield Inlet located in the Kivalliq
region. The current population is 397 based on a 2021
census. The projected population in 2033 is
489 residents. Chesterfield falls under the WI son
wat er shed ar ea.

The previous license held by the Hanml et was a
Type "B" |icense, which expired on May 14th, 2023. The

wat er use aut horized under the expired |licence was
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23,000 cubic netres per year. The new Type "A" |icense
application requests a termof ten years.

The water use requested is the sane, that is
23,000 cubic netres per annum and a request to
wi thdraw up to 2,000 cubic netres of water per day from
First Lake during the open water season to fill the
comunity's water reservoir.

The scope of the application includes w thdrawal
of water from  First Lake to support comunity needs,
conti nued operation and mai ntenance of the follow ng
muni ci pal facilities: Water supply facilities, which
i nclude a punp station at First Lake, overland water
supply pipeline, water storage reservoir, and a
truck-fill station; the sewage di sposal facilities
i ncl ude two sewage detention cells and a wetland area
for supplenentary treatnent; and a solid waste di sposa
facility.

| will now briefly go over the procedural history
of the application. So the Water Board received the
application on March 20t h.

On March 22nd, they acknow edged the receipt of
application and determned that it neets the
requi renments for public distribution and invited
Interested parties to conduct an initial conpleteness
check by April 12, 2023.

On April 12, we received information requests from
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Crown- | ndi genous Rel ati ons and Northern Affairs Canada,
Environnent and C i mate Change Canada, and Depart nent
of Fisheries and Cceans. The Applicant provided
responses on May 3rd.

On May 9th, CIRNAC and ECCC accepted Applicant's
responses and stated they were ready to nove to the
next step of the process.

On May 23rd, the NWB provided a public notice of
application and commenced a 24-day technical review
period. Included in this correspondence were tinelines
for the technical neeting and pre-hearing conference.

On June 15, CIRNAC requested extension to submt
comments by June 21. On June 21, parties submtted
their technical review comments. Responses were
recei ved fromthe Applicant on June 29th.

July 6th, the NWB distributed the draft agenda for
the technical neeting and pre-hearing conference.

On July 13th, the NWB received confirmtion of
participation and presentati on docunents from Cl RNAC
and the Applicant.

On July 14th, the Water Board provi ded
correspondence wth the final agenda for the technica
neeti ng and pre-hearing conference.

On July 19th, the NWB hosted the technical neeting
and pre-hearing conference via tel econference, which

was followed by a conmunity session in the evening.
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On August 25th, the pre-hearing conference
deci sion was issued. This decision provided the Board
panel's direction that the public hearing be conducted
i n person and proposed tinelines for a pre-hearing
exchange of information by parties and public. On
August 25th, the Water Board al so i ssued a notice of
witten public hearing.

On Novenber 2nd, the NWB provided the fina
agendas for the public hearing and community session.

And t oday, Novenber 15th, the NWB panel, P24,
conducted the public hearing in person, including this
community session in the Hanl et of Chesterfield Inlet.

Moving to Slide 19. The Nunavut Water Board
encour ages everyone to participate in the public
hearing and the conmmunity session. Any interested
persons or parties can contact the NAB staff if they
need to provide witten conments or review any
application docunents. All docunents received during
this application process are available on the Water
Board's FTP site.

Now, on to the next steps in the application
process. This week's public hearing is chaired by the
Board panel and led by the Board's Chair. The NWB
panel is here to consider the evidence provided during
the hearing before issuing a decision in about 30 to

45 days. The NMB will informthe public of the Board's
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deci si on once render ed.

This is contact information for the NWB staff with
their email addresses. And now we have tine for
qguestions. Thank you.

M5. AUTUT: Thank you, Ali.

So we'll open the floor to the public, if you have
any questions for the Water Board before we nove on to
t he next presentation. You' re good? GCkay. Thank you.

So we're going to turn the mc over to the
Applicant who is going to nake a brief presentation
about the renewal -anendnent application that we're
di scussing at this hearing.

So G\, Community and Governnent Services, please
conmmence your presentation.

Community Session Presentation by the Governnent of
Nunavut, Comrunity and Governnment Services

MS. CLOUTER: Kayla Cl outer, G\NCGS. Thank
you, Chair.

| wll share ny screen.

V5. AUTUT: So, Kayla, before you get
started, just a friendly rem nder to please keep your
speed at a reasonable level, and if you could pause at
the end of a sentence to allowthe interpreters to
catch up, that would be nuch appreci ated.

M5. CLOUTER: Yes. Thank you.

| f sonebody could just confirmfor ne when you're
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able to see ...
M5. AUTUT: Kayl a, it's Stephanie.

And, yes, we can see your presentation. Thank
you.

M5. CLOUTER Thank you so nuch.

This presentation was created for the Nunavut
Wat er Board public hearing for the water |icence
renewal and anmendnent to Chesterfield Inlet Type "A"
water |icence, 3AM CHE----.

We'll briefly cover the existing expired |icence.
The previous licence was issued on May 15th, 2015. It
expired on May 14th, 2023. And the scope of the
| icense allowed for the use of water and the deposit of
wast e for nunicipal undert aking.

This application is for the renewal of the
exi sting licence and an anendnent to change to a
Type "A" license. This change is to reflect the higher
daily withdrawal s during the annual resupply period.

To give sonme background on the water supply
infrastructure, First Lake is the donestic water supply
for the Municipality of Chesterfield Inlet. The
wat ershed is frozen for seven to nine nonths out of the
year. Therefore, a raw water reservoir nust be
adequately supplied prior to this freeze-up.

Chesterfield Inlet currently uses up to

2,000 netres cubed per day for approximately 14 days to
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fill the reservoir.

So this is an overview of the water supply
infrastructure in the community of Chesterfield Inlet.

The sewage treatnent facility is |ocated
approxi mately 2.2 kilonmetres west of the comunity.
The facility was upgraded in 2010, and it is conprised
of two truck di scharge areas, two sewage detention
cells, and a wetland area with four small ponds and two
fl ow di version berns.

These wet| ands enconpass an area that is
approximately 10.4 hectares, and effluent flows 800 to
1,000 netres through the wetlands into the marine
envi ronnment of Finger Bay on Hudson Bay.

This is an overview of that wastewater disposal
i nfrastructure.

Moving on to solid waste. The solid waste
di sposal facility has a disposal area for nunici pal
solid waste. It has a separate bul k netal disposal
area and two drum storage areas. There is a
decomm ssioned landfill present between the fenced
muni ci pal solid waste area and the bul k netal disposa
ar ea.

The municipal solid waste disposal facility covers
an area that is approxinmately 24,000 netres squared,
and it is adjacent to and north of the sewage di sposal

facility.
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That is an overview of the solid waste di sposal
i nfrastructure.

Now to a brief overview of the sanpling program
fromthe previous license. CHE-1 is the raw water
supply intake that is at First Lake. CHE-2 is the
runoff fromthe solid waste disposal facility. CHE-3
is the effluent from Sewage Holding Cell 1. CHE-3a is
the effluent from Sewage Holding Cell 2. And CHE-4 is
the final discharge point for effluent fromthe wetl and
treatnment area prior to Finger Bay.

And this is an overview of those sanpling points
in the comunity.

So noving on to the regulatory review portion. To
address the first comment from Environnment and Cimte
Change Canada, it was regardi ng sl udge nanagenent, the
future of our sludge nonitoring, whether or not sludge
noni tori ng happens on a regular basis, and if there has
been an indication in the decrease in treatnent
per for mance.

Sludge in the comunity is observed through visual
I nspection on an annual basis, and GNNCGS is currently
seeking funding to upgrade the wastewater treatnent
facility, and this upgrade wll include a sl udge
managenent pl an.

The second comment was regarding runoff collection

and whet her runoff is collected fromthe solid waste
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facility and tested prior to discharge. GN CGS has
confirmed that runoff is not collected. However, there
has been no indication that the | eachate has caused a
negative inpact on the wetland. Monitoring stations
will continue to be nonitored in the future.

Moving on to the comments from ClRNAC. The
comment of note, one, was regardi ng abandonnment and
restoration plans. Cl RNAC had recommended G\ CGS put
t oget her a conceptual abandonnent and restoration plan.
CGS' s response is that the abandonnent and restoration
pl ans are devel oped by third parties, and these third
parties are hired by GNNCGS at the tine that a plan is
required, and this is because they are site and asset
specific.

The next comment of note was regardi ng i nspection
reports. CIRNAC was unable to |ocate a report by a
geot echni cal or nunicipal engineer within the last five
years. No such report currently exists. However, CGS
Is currently undertaking a project to identify the type
of inspection, the frequency of inspection, and the
appropriate professionals with very specific training
to undertake the inspections for these assets.

The next coment was regarding daily vol unes at
Monitoring Location CHE-1. It was recomended that
CHE-1 be reported as the daily volunmes w thdrawn from

First Lake during resupply. GN-CGS has comritted to
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reporting daily volunmes punped fromFirst Lake during
the annual resupply in the annual reports.

The next coment was regarding a new nonitoring
| ocation, CHE-l1a. This was a nonitoring | ocation that
was recomrended to be at the water supply facility, and
this would be to nonitor the daily volune of water use.
G\ CGS has committed to reporting the daily vol unes of
wat er punped fromthe water supply | ake, First Lake,
and has commtted to continuing to report nonthly and
annual vol unes that are punped fromthe water supply
facility reservoir.

The next comment was regarding | andfarm use and
whet her the current landfarmis in use by the conmmunity
for contam nated soils. G\-CGS has confirnmed with the
Haml et that the landfarmis not currently in use by the
muni ci pality for the renedi ati on of contam nated soil
However, should this facility need to be used for
renmedi ation in the future, a letter of authorization
wi || be requested fromthe owner.

So we'll go over the renewal s and anendnents
requested for this water licence. W are requesting a
licence termof ten years. This is because there is no
change in the nunicipal operations, and water use is
not expected to increase beyond the current annual
limt within the next ten years based on popul ati on

proj ecti ons.
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We are requesting a maxi numdaily water w thdrawal
of 2,000 netres cubed, and this is due to the watershed
being frozen for seven to nine nonths out of the year.
Therefore, the raw water reservoir nust be adequately
supplied prior to the freeze-up.

W are al so requesting the renoval of requirenents
that are not practical or no | onger applicable. This
i ncl udes the subm ssion of paper docunents, as
everything is currently submtted el ectronically,
al i gni ng subm ssion deadlines with the annual report,
and daily waste disposal reporting. There's currently
no solid waste attendant position in the comunity.

So this is sone contact information for nyself and
Megan Lusty, and this is for any questions that my
come up regarding the water |icence or nunicipa
i nfrastructure outside of the scope of this water
licence. So you can feel free to contact us at any
time with any of your questions or concerns.

Thank you. And tinme for sone questions.

MS. AUTUT: Great. Thank you,
Ms. C outer.

Are there any questions fromthe public for the

Gover nnent of Nunavut ?
Questions/ Comments fromthe Conmunity
V5. AUTUT: Ckay. Go ahead, pl ease.

Pl ease state your nane for the record.
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MR. SAMMURTCK: Yeah. M nane is Simonie
Samurt ok, Mayor for Chesterfield Inlet.

|'ve got a question about the -- we call that
First Lake "Puiqgsuk”. W call it -- the First Lake
“Pui qsuk"”. There's fishes in there, and it's --
when -- the dunp is in the north of the reservoir, and
when the dunps is put on fire, all the snoke starts to
go towards the reservoir, and they want to know if the
Gover nnent of Nunavut has any plans for this in the
future. FromFirst Lake, they punp water to the
reservoir. They want -- he wants to know if there's
any plans for this.
M5. AUTUT: Thank you.

Ryan, can you confirm whether or not Zoom gets the
transl ation.
MR. DEMPSTER: Yeah, as |long as they choose
the English dictation.
V5. AUTUT: kay. So, Kayla, are you
prepared to respond to the question?
M5. CLOUTER: | am-- thank you. Kayla
Cl outer, G\ CGS.

|'"'mactually not currently seeing the
i nterpretation on nmy screen.
MS. LUSTY: H . Megan Lusty, CGS.

| did receive the interpretation, and | can

respond to the question on behalf of G\-CGS
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V5. AUTUT: Thank you, Megan. Please go
ahead.
M5. LUSTY: Ckay. Thank you, M. Mayor,

for your question.

Regar di ng burning practices at the dunp, that is
sonet hing that CGS can work with the nunicipal staff as
under the recomrendati ons of ECCC, and as per the solid
waste site O%M manual, burning is not a recomended
practice. So CGS can work with the nmunicipal staff
over -- to review the recommended practices for better
managenent wi thin your current solid waste site.

As far as inpacts on the current nunici pal
reservoir, well, this is outside of the scope of the
license and falls under the jurisdiction of public
health. CGS works with your municipal operators in
taking water chem stry testing of the water within the
reservoir and confirmthat it meets the guidelines of
Canadi an drinking water quality and have seen no
I npacts from nearby burning at the solid waste site.
Thank you.

M5. AUTUT: Thank you, Ms. Lusty.

Si moni e, does that address your question?

MR. SAMMURTCK: He thought that reservoir was
too close to the dunp. Wen the dunp was put on fire,
all that snoke goes to the reservoir. So he was

concerned. When the wind is comng fromthe north, the
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snoke starts going towards the reservoir fromthe

north. When there's wind from-- when there's w nd

fromthe north, all that snoke starts going towards the

reservoir. So he was concerned about the quality of
the water, if that snoke affects the water.
M5. AUTUT: Thank you for that further
clarification.

So just in response to Ms. Lusty's comment, your
SAO coul d reach out to have a di scussi on about other
| andfill managenent options beyond the burning, and
there nmay be an opportunity for themto assist the
comunity with -- wth different options.

Are there any further questions fromthe public?

No?
M5. AUTUT: How about the intervening
parties? ClIRNAC, any questions?
M5. W LSON: Christine WI son.

No. W have no questi ons.
M5. AUTUT: Thank you.

M. Chair, do any of the Board nenbers have
questions at this tinme for CG&S?

Questions/ Comments fromthe Nunavut Water Board

THE CHAI R No, not at this time.
M5. Sl LOU | do.

THE CHAI R You do have one?

M5. Sl LOU Yeah. But |'mnot sure
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whether it's to themor to the Water Board. It's to do
wi th what they tal ked about .

THE CHAI R Go ahead.
MS. AUTUT: Sar ah.
MS. SILOU: Sarah Sil ou.

|"mnot sure who this is addressed to, but a while
back, you nentioned -- we were tal king about the
procedures, the steps, that we go through to achieve
what we're trying to achieve, and there was a point
where -- well, it looks like there's an upgrade and
various different things that are being added or
requested. And if the Water Board approves sonet hi ng,
a notion, and for whatever reason, with respect, | ask:
If the Mnister should refuse the whole thing or the --
what the Water Board had approved or parts of it or
maybe he requires or she requires a question to be
answered, | wonder what happens. Do we go through it
all again, or do we go to what there was a question on?
Thank you, M. Chair.
MS. AUTUT: Thank you, Sarah. Stephanie
Aut ut, Nunavut Water Board.

|"mgoing to ask Teresa Meadows to respond to
t hat .
V5. MEADOWS: Thank you for the question
Sarah. Teresa Meadows, |egal counsel for the Nunavut

Wat er Board.
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So what happens with water |icencing decisions, so
t he Nunavut Water Board, as you know, the Panel, wl]l
be the deci sion-nakers, and the deci sion-makers w |
send a report to the Mnister of Northern Affairs, and
the Mnister will review that report. And if the Board
were to approve a water |icense, they send a water
licence as well. They attach a water |icense and the
terms and conditions that they would recomend.

If the Mnister reviews the water |icense, the
M nister has a few choices. So the first choice is
they can accept the Water Board's decision, and the
license is issued on the ternms and conditions that the
Wat er Board has proposed. They can reject conpletely
the Water Board's report and the water |icence and
refuse to approve the issuance of a water licence, in
whi ch case there would be no water licence at all, or
the Mnister could al so recomend variants, so changes
to water licence ternms or conditions in the event that
the Mnister decides that the terns are not protective
enough or that the terns are too onerous, to
restrictive.

And in that case, usually the Mnister would wite
back to the Water Board and say, Please reconsider
these terns and conditions because we don't think -- |
don't think that these are protective enough or we

think they're too stringent or we think that you shoul d

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




88

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

revisit those ternms or conditions.

It is very rare for that to happen fortunately.
In the past, the Nunavut Water Board and the Mnister's
office, the Mnister very often will approve the Water
Board' s deci si on-nmaki ng and i ssue the licence on the
sanme terns and condi ti ons.

Qccasionally, very rarely, it has happened where
the Mnister has returned sonething to the Water Board
to consider one or two ternms and conditions in a water
l'icence and has requested the Water Board to revisit
specific terns or conditions in the water |icence.

But | hope that answered your question, Sarabh.

M5. SILOU Yes. Thank you.
Thank you, M. Chair.
M5. AUTUT: Thank you, Sarah. Stephanie

Aut ut, Nunavut Water Board.

| "' m advi sed by ny team here that the staff have no
questions for GN-CGS. So | would Iike to thank you for
your presentation.

And at this tinme, we're going to take a short
ten-m nute break. People are welcone to the food and
refreshnments, and when we cone back from break, we're
goi ng to have Crown-Indi genous Rel ati ons and Northern
Affairs Canada make their presentation. Thank you.

( ADJ OURNMENT)
M5. AUTUT: Al right. Thanks, everyone.
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Wl cone back.

So we're going to ask Crown-1ndi genous Rel ati ons
and Northern Affairs Canada to provide a brief
presentation on the renewal -anmendnent application that
we're currently discussing.

Go ahead, pl ease.

Communi ty Session Presentation by Crown-Indi genous
Rel ati ons and Northern Affairs Canada
M5. W LSON: Thank you.

Thank you, everyone, for participating today in
the public hearing for Chesterfield Inlet's water
l'icence.

For sinplicity, | will be referring to the Nunavut
Water Board as the "Board" and Chesterfield Inlet, the
Gover nnent of Nunavut, and Conmunity and Gover nnent
Services, as the "Applicant"”.

My nane is Christine Wlson. | ama water
managenent coordi nator with Crown-Indi genous Rel ati ons
and Northern Affairs Canada' s water resource division.
Joining ne is M. Andrew Keim the manager of water
resour ces.

"Il refer to Crown-1ndi genous Rel ati ons and
Northern Affairs as "Cl RNAC'.

Just to avoid duplication, I'"'mgoing to briefly go
over our presentation. The information -- the majority

of the informati on has been presented in the GN s
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presentation prior to this.

This presentation will go in this order: Starting
with CIRNAC s roles and responsibilities, our
contributions to the water |icence process, coments
and recommendati ons, comm tnents, and questi ons.

CIRNAC is a reqgulatory intervenor. Wter
resources works to protect, conserve, and increase
Nunavunmm ut's under st andi ng of Nunavut's water
resources. ClIRNAC provides advice to the Board on
matters of water licencing under Article 13 of the
Nunavut land claim CIRNAC s responsibilities are in
align with the pieces of |egislation shown on the
sl i de.

As the Board has explained in their introduction,
G\ CGS has provided the Board with a renewal - anendnent
application for a Type "A" water licence. Al of
Cl RNAC s recommendati ons and comrents are considered to
be resol ved or resol ved by conmtnent.

Recommend -- | will nove on to the technical
revi ew recomendati ons. ClI RNAC has nmade nine
recommendati ons. Recommendation 1, daily water use was
netered at the water supply facility rather than the
freshwater intake at First Lake. The freshwater intake
at First Lake is used only for approximtely tw weeks
during annual resupply of the reservoir.

Cl RNAC reconmends the daily water use be netered
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at First Lake and the volune be provided in the annual
report under Monitoring Station CHE-1. The Applicant
has commtted to providing this information in the
annual report. CIRNAC considers this resolved by
conmm t ment .

The Applicant has commtted to recordi ng water use
at First Lake. To neet the conditions of the |icence,
an additional nonitoring station is required at the
wat er supply facility. CI RNAC recommends an additi onal
nmonitoring station be added at the water supply
facility under CHE-la. The Applicant has commtted to
providing this information. CIRNAC considers this
resol ved by comm t nent.

Recommendati on 3, CIRNAC reviewed the quality
assurance/ quality control plan and noted that
Monitoring Station CHE-2 was m ssing. The Applicant
resubmtted the plan on July 11th. Cl RNAC considers
this issue resol ved.

Recommendati on 4, Cl RNAC reviewed the operation
and mai ntenance plan for the solid waste facility and
noted contradictory information regardi ng the use of
the landfarm The Applicant clarified information on
June 29th, and Cl RNAC considered this issue resol ved.

Recommendati on 5, Cl RNAC revi ewed the new
operation and nmai ntenance plan for the solid waste

facility and noted that the GPS coordi nates were
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i ncorrect. The Applicant agreed to provide this
information to the Board. This reconmendation is
consi dered resol ved by conmm t nent.

Recommendati on 6, Cl RNAC revi ewed the operation
and mai ntenance plan for the sewage di sposal facility.
The plan detailed sanpling of the sludge treatnent upon
removal .  CI RNAC reconmmends that sludge testing is
conpleted prior to renoval or disposal. The Applicant
agreed that if sludge is renoved, sanpling would take
pl ace. This recommendation is considered resolved by
comm t ment .

Recommendati on 7, ClI RNAC reviewed the operation
and mai ntenance plan for the sewage di sposal facility
and noted an error. The Applicant resubmtted the pl an
with the corrections on July 11th. ClI RNAC consi ders
t he issue resol ved.

Recommendati on 8, Cl RNAC revi ewed the operation
and mai ntenance plan for the sewage di sposal facility
and noted an issue with the GPS | ocations of nonitoring
stations. The Applicant agreed to confirmthis
information and provide it to the Board. ClRNAC
considers this issue to be resolved by comm t nent.

And the | ast one, Recommendation 9, the current
wat er |icense requires inspections of engineered
structures in the community and a report to be provided

to the Board annually. No record of this inspection
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report was avail able on the Board's FTP website. The
Applicant has agreed to providing a report anal yzing
the type of structures and frequency of inspection by
March 31st, 2025. CIRNAC considers this issue resolved
by comm t nent.

As you can see, all of the issues have been
resol ved or resolved by conmtnent.

Concerns that are being addressed but require
foll owup actions are shown here on the slide. For the
pur poses of today's hearing, these concerns have al
been resol ved or resol ved by conm tnent.

CIRNAC w Il work with the Applicant through the
wat er |icencing process with the aimof protecting
Nunavut's inland water resources while pronoting
sust ai nabl e devel opnent.

|"d like to thank everyone today for participating
in the public hearing. Thank you.

V5. AUTUT: Thank you, CIRNAC, Christine.

So | open it to questions to nenbers of the
public. Anyone have questions for CIRNAC at this tine?
No one? Ckay.

@GN, do you have any questions for CIRNAC at this
time?

M5. CLOUTER: Kayl a C outer, G\ CGS.
No further questions at this tinme. Thank you.

M5. AUTUT: Thank you.
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Staff, any questions?

Menbers of the Board, any questions? No
guestions. Gay. Thank you.

Thank you for your presentation.

Thi s norning, we also heard from Environnent and
Cimte Change Canada. Unfortunately, they are not
able to attend this evening to give their presentation,
but they have left a copy of their presentation on the
back table with this logo onit, if you wanted to take
that copy with you, or have a look at it before you
| eave, and we may be able to address any questions.

So this brings us to the end of our agenda for
tonight's session. On behalf of the Nunavut Water
Board, | would like to thank everyone for participating
tonight. Thank you to the community of Chesterfield
Inlet for hosting these neetings. A special thank you
to the presenters tonight and all of the people who
chose to join us to share your views, comrents, and
gquestions wth the Board.

M. Chair, | would |like to now hand the m crophone

back to you for your closing remarks and to provide

further explanation of what will happen next.
THE CHAI R Thank you.
Before | proceed with ny closing remarks, 1'd |ike

a short break, at least five mnutes or so, to deal

with | egal counsel.

Dicta Court Reporting Inc.
403-531-0590




95

© 00 N oo o B~ W DN P

N DN D N DD DNN P P PP PR, PRk
o o A W DN P O © 00 N o 0o AW DN O

( ADJ OURNVENT)

THE CHAI R kay. My papers are resolved.
I was kind of getting -- | was getting mxed up with
them | had actual public hearing fromtoday's session
and then tonight's papers also getting mxed up. It's

all good now.

Cl osing Remarks by the Chair

THE CHAI R So |l wll now pass the --
well, as we bring this public hearing to a close, on
behal f of the Board, ny fellow Panel nenbers, | would

like to thank all the parties who contributed to making
this public hearing comunity session a success,
especially the Applicant, the Ham et of Chesterfield
Inlet and its representatives; Governnent of Nunavut,
Communi ty and Governnment Services; intervenors,
Crown- I ndi genous Rel ations and Northern Affairs and
Environnent and C i mate Change Canada; NWB staff and
| egal counsel; interpreters, Mary Rose Angoshadl uk and
G oria Thonpson; court reporter, Andres Vidal; audio
facilitator, Ryan Denpster; and other community nenbers
and the Elders for their valuable participation in this
publ i ¢ heari ng.

Thanks also to the caterers and the Ham et of
Chesterfield Inlet for their outstanding hospitality
and patience with the Board.

As we are at the end of the hearing, | wll make
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sone coments to let the parties know that -- know
what's next for the renewal -anmendnent application.

The Board will now cl ose public hearing records.
What this neans is that our evidence with regards to
this application is now before the Board, and no
further information will be considered by the Panel
before they make their decision about the application.

Now that the record is closed, the Board w |
remt the file to the Panel to decide whether or not to
replace its expired |icence and grant the Type "A"
licence as requested by the Haml et of Chesterfield
I nlet.

Wthin 30 days to 45 days after the public hearing
record closes, the N\M\B will issue its record of
proceedi ngs and decision to the Mnister of Northern
Affairs. |If the Board's decision is to grant the
licence, a draft of the renewal Type "A" water |icence
woul d be attached to the Board decision for the
M nister's approval .

That concl udes the public hearing conponent of the
Nunavut Water Board's consideration of the Haml et of
Chesterfield Inlet application to renew and anend their
expired water |icense.

The Board and I wi sh you all a good eveni ng and
safe travels returning honme to all visitors to

Chesterfield Inlet. Good night. |It's closed. Thank
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you.
M5. AUTUT: Pl ease hel p yourself to
whatever food is here. |If you have famly that coul d

benefit fromit, take sone hone.
MR. SAMMURTCXK: Chesterfield Inlet, Nunavut
Wat er Board, thank you for doing a hearing. And also,
CI RNAC, thank you for coming to Chesterfield. W want
to work with you again in the future because our
future, we have to consider our youth.

Thank you very nmuch for comng to Chesterfield.

Quj annam i k. Thank you.

PROCEEDI NGS5 ADJOURNED
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|, Andres Vidal, certify that the foregoing pages
are a conplete and accurate transcript of the
proceedi ngs taken down by ne in shorthand and
transcribed fromny shorthand notes to the best of ny
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Dated at the City of St. Al bert, Province of
Al berta, this 27th day of Novenber 2023.
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